
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr
Chief Officer (Governance)
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu)

1

Swyddog Cyswllt:
Maureen Potter / 01352 702322
maureen.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Bob Aelod o’r Cyngor

13 Hydref 2021

Annwyl Gynghorydd,

HYSBYSIAD O GYFARFOD HYBRID
CYNGOR SIR Y FFLINT

DYDD MAWRTH, 19 HYDREF, 2021 2.00 PM

Yn gywir

Robert Robins
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Nodwch: Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod hybrid a fydd yn cael ei gynnal yn Ystafell Clwyd yn 
Theatr Clwyd, yr Wyddgrug ac o bell yn defnyddio Zoom.  Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei 
ffrydio’n fyw ar wefan y Cyngor. Bydd recordiad o’r cyfarfod ar gael yn fuan ar ôl y 
cyfarfod ar https://flintshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home. 

Os oes gennych chi unrhyw gwestiwn ynglŷn â hyn, cysylltwch ag aelod o'r Tîm 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 01352 702345. 

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus

https://flintshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


2

R H A G L E N

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

2 COFNODION (Tudalennau 5 - 10)
Pwrpas: I gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod ar 28 Medi  

2021.

3 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylltiad a chynghori’r Aelodau 

yn unol a hynny.

4 CYHOEDDIADAU'R CADEIRYDD 
Pwrpas: Derbyn y cyhoeddiadau fel y rhannwyd, a chynnwys adroddiad 

llafar y Swyddog Canlyniadau o is-etholiad Penyffordd ar 7 
Hydref a’r croeso i’r cynghorydd newydd.

5 DEISEBAU 
Pwrpas: Mae hwn yn gyfle i Aelodau’r Cyngor gyflwyno deisebau ar ran 

pobl yn eu ward. Unwaith y byddant wedi dod i law, caiff 
deisebau eu pasio i'r Prif Swyddog priodol ar gyfer gweithredu ac 
ymateb iddynt.

PRIF EITEMAU BUSNES

DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD I WYBODAETH) 1985 - 
YSTYRIED GWAHARDD Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD

Mae’r eitem a ganlyn yn cael ei hystyried yn eitem eithriedig yn rhinwedd 
Paragraff(au) 15 Rhan 4 Atodiad 12A o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y 
cafodd ei diwygio)

Mae'r adroddiad yn ymwneud â phenderfyniadau ar gysylltiadau gweithwyr ac 
mae budd y cyhoedd mewn dal y wybodaeth yn ôl yn gorbwyso'r diddordeb 
mewn ei chyhoeddi nes bod y penderfyniadau wedi'u gwneud.

6 PRIF SWYDDOG, GALLU’R TÎM (Tudalennau 11 - 28)
Adroddiad Prif Weithredwr, Uwch Reolwr, Adnoddau Dynol a Datblygu 
Sefydliadol

Pwrpas: Ceisio cymeradwyaeth yr aelodau i nifer o newidiadau i’r model 
gweithredu presennol



3

DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH) 1985 - I 
AIL-DDECHRAU FFRYDIO BYW AR GYFER Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD

Gwahoddir y Cyngor i nodi yn dilyn ystyriaeth o’r eitem gyfrinachol, y bydd y 
ffrydio byw yn ail-ddechrau er mwyn galluogi’r wasg a’r cyhoedd i wylio 
gweddill y cyfarfod.

7 ADRODDIAD PERFFORMIAD BLYNYDDOL 2020/21 (Tudalennau 29 - 70)
Adroddiad Prif Weithredwr

Pwrpas: Mabwysiadu Adroddiad Perfformiad Blynyddol 2020/21

EITEMAU CYFFREDIN BUSNES

8 RHYBUDD O GYNNIG (Tudalennau 71 - 72)
Pwrpas: Mae'r eitem hon i dderbyn unrhyw Rybuddion Cynnig. 

Derbyniwyd un ac mae ynghlwm.

9 CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD 
Pwrpas: Derbyn Cwestiynau Cyhoeddus ar gyfer yr eitem hon: doedd dim 

wedi dod i law erbyn y dyddiad cau.

10 CWESTIYNAU 
Pwrpas: Nodi’r atebion i unrhyw gwestiwn a gyflwynwyd yn unol â Rheol 

Sefydlog 9.4(A) y Cyngor Sir: doedd dim wedi dod i law erbyn y 
dyddiad cau.

BUSNES ARBENNIG

11 CYDNABYDDIAETH O WASANAETH GAN COLIN EVERETT, PRIF 
WEITHREDWR AR FIN GADAEL 
Pwrpas: I gydnabod 14 mlynedd o wasanaeth gan Colin Everett fel Prif 

Weithredwr sydd wedi gwasanaethu hiraf  ar y Cyngor.

Sylwch, efallai y bydd egwyl o 10 munud os yw’r cyfarfod yn para’n hirach na 
dwy awr.



4

Nodyn Gweithdrefnol ar redeg cyfarfodydd

Bydd y Cadeirydd yn agor y cyfarfodydd ac yn cyflwyno eu hunain.

Bydd nifer o Gynghorwyr yn mynychu cyfarfodydd. Bydd swyddogion hefyd yn 
mynychu cyfarfodydd i gyflwyno adroddiadau, gyda swyddogion Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd yn trefnu a chynnal y cyfarfodydd.  

Gofynnir i bawb sy’n mynychu i sicrhau bod eu ffonau symudol wedi diffodd a bod 
unrhyw sain gefndirol yn cael ei gadw mor dawel â phosib.  

Dylai’r holl feicroffonau gael eu rhoi “ar miwt” yn ystod y cyfarfod a dim ond pan 
fyddwch yn cael eich gwahodd i siarad gan y Cadeirydd y dylid eu rhoi ymlaen. Pan 
fydd gwahoddedigion wedi gorffen siarad dylen nhw roi eu hunain yn ôl “ar miwt”.

Er mwyn mynegi eu bod nhw eisiau siarad bydd Cynghorwyr yn defnyddio’r 
cyfleuster ‘chat’ neu yn defnyddio’r swyddogaeth ‘raise hand’ sy’n dangos eicon codi 
llaw electronig. Mae’r swyddogaeth ‘chat’ hefyd yn gallu cael ei ddefnyddio i ofyn 
cwestiynau, i wneud sylwadau perthnasol ac yn gyfle i’r swyddog gynghori neu 
ddiweddaru’r cynghorwyr.

Bydd y Cadeirydd yn galw ar y siaradwyr, gan gyfeirio at aelod etholedig fel 
‘Cynghorydd’ a swyddogion yn ôl eu teitl swydd h.y. Prif Weithredwr neu enw.  O 
bryd i’w gilydd mae’r swyddog sy’n cynghori’r Cadeirydd yn egluro pwyntiau 
gweithdrefnol neu’n awgrymu geiriad arall ar gyfer cynigion er mwyn cynorthwyo’r 
Pwyllgor. 

Os, a phan y cynhelir pleidlais, mi fydd y Cadeirydd yn egluro mai dim ond y rheiny 
sy’n gwrthwynebu’r cynnig/cynigion, neu sy’n dymuno ymatal a fydd angen mynegi 
hynny drwy ddefnyddio’r swyddogaeth ‘chat’.  Bydd y swyddog sy’n cynghori’r 
Cadeirydd yn mynegi os bydd y cynigion yn cael eu derbyn. 

Os oes angen pleidlais fwy ffurfiol, bydd hynny yn ôl galwad enwau – lle gofynnir i 
bob Cynghorydd yn ei dro (yn nhrefn yr wyddor) sut mae ef / hi yn dymuno 
pleidleisio.

Yng nghyfarfodydd Pwyllgorau Cynllunio a Chyngor Sir mae amseroedd siaradwyr 
yn gyfyngedig.  Bydd cloch yn cael ei chanu i roi gwybod i’r siaradwyr bod ganddyn 
nhw funud ar ôl. 

Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw ar wefan y Cyngor.  Bydd recordiad o’r 
cyfarfod ar gael yn fuan ar ôl y cyfarfod ar https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home

https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home


FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
28 SEPTEMBER 2021

Minutes of the meeting of Flintshire County Council held as a remote attendance 
meeting on Tuesday, 28 September 2021

PRESENT: Councillor Joe Johnson (Chairman)
Councillors: Mike Allport, Janet Axworthy, Glyn Banks, Haydn Bateman, 
Marion Bateman, Sean Bibby, Chris Bithell, Helen Brown, Clive Carver, Geoff Collett, 
Bob Connah, Paul Cunningham, Jean Davies, Rob Davies, Ron Davies, 
Chris Dolphin, Rosetta Dolphin, Ian Dunbar, Mared Eastwood, Carol Ellis, 
David Evans, Veronica Gay, George Hardcastle, Patrick Heesom, Cindy Hinds, 
Andy Hughes, Dave Hughes, Paul Johnson, Christine Jones, Richard Jones, 
Richard Lloyd, Mike Lowe, Dave Mackie, Hilary McGuill, Billy Mullin, Ted Palmer, 
Mike Peers, Michelle Perfect, Vicky Perfect, Neville Phillips, Ian Roberts, 
Tim Roberts, Kevin Rush, Tony Sharps, Aaron Shotton, Paul Shotton, Ralph Small, 
Ian Smith, Martin White, David Wisinger and Arnold Woolley

APOLOGIES:
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Derek Butler, David Cox, Andy Dunbobbin, 
David Healey, Gladys Healey, Ray Hughes, Dennis Hutchinson, Rita Johnson, 
Tudor Jones, Colin Legg, Brian Lloyd, Carolyn Thomas, Owen Thomas and 
Andy Williams

IN ATTENDANCE:
Chief Executive, Chief Officer (Governance), Chief Officer (Housing and Assets), 
Chief Officer (Planning, Environment and Economy), Chief Officer (Education and 
Youth), Chief Officer (Streetscene and Transportation), Corporate Finance Manager, 
Head of Democratic Services, Democratic Services Team Leader and Democratic 
Services Officers

35. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2021 were approved as a correct 
record, subject to apologies recorded for Councillor Andy Williams, as moved and 
seconded by Councillors Ian Dunbar and Paul Shotton.

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 August 2021 were approved with 
apologies recorded for Councillor Richard Jones, as moved and seconded by 
Councillors Ian Dunbar and Ralph Small.

RESOLVED:

That subject to the amendments, the minutes be approved as a correct record.

Tudalen 5

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 2



36. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

On the advice of the Chief Officer (Governance), a personal interest was 
declared on the Clwyd Pension Fund and Wales Pension Partnership (agenda item 
7) for the following members of the Clwyd Pension Fund:

Councillors: Haydn Bateman, Marion Bateman, Helen Brown, Rob Davies, 
Mared Eastwood, Cindy Hinds, Dave Hughes, Joe Johnson, Paul Johnson, 
Christine Jones, Dave Mackie and Ian Smith.

A personal interest was also declared by the following whose family members 
were in the Clwyd Pension Fund: Councillors Chris Bithell, Ted Palmer, Kevin Rush, 
Ralph Small and Ian Smith.

37. CHAIRMAN’S COMMUNICATIONS

In presenting his communications, the Chairman thanked attendees of the 
Civic Service in Holywell.  The Vice-Chair, Councillor Mared Eastwood, commended 
the new art installation to mark the 125th anniversary of Shotton Steelworks.

38. PETITIONS

None were received.

39. BOUNDARY COMMISSION FOR WALES: 2023 REVIEW OF PARLIAMENTARY 
CONSTITUENCIES - INITIAL PROPOSALS

The Chief Executive presented a report on the initial proposals for 
Parliamentary constituencies in Wales following the review by the Boundary 
Commission for Wales.  The review was based on a recommended 73,393 electors 
per constituency (UKEQ).  Whilst this would reduce the number of constituencies 
across Wales, Flintshire remained largely protected.  The proposals for Flintshire set 
out the composition of wards to form the constituencies of Delyn and Alyn & Deeside 
with a suggestion that the latter be officially renamed Alun a Glannau Dyfrdwy.  The 
proposals were subject to a public consultation period ending on 3 November 2021.

Councillor Mike Peers questioned why Brymbo and Minera, rather than wards 
within Delyn, should be brought into Alyn & Deeside to achieve the UKEQ and he 
questioned the rationale for changing the name of that constituency.  In response to 
a query, the Head of Democratic Services clarified that the report reflected current 
electorate figures pending the outcome of the review by the Local Democracy and 
Boundary Commission for Wales.

Councillor Chris Bithell raised concerns that the principles of the review were 
not being applied consistently across Wales.  He was concerned that the proposals 
for Flintshire could be detrimental in breaking long-established links between existing 
communities, for example between areas such as Mold, Argoed and New Brighton.  
He said that incorporating wards from Denbighshire could present challenges in 
forming cohesive areas within the Delyn constituency and that a reduction in the 

Tudalen 6



number of MPs in Wales would impact negatively on representation of Wales and its 
position in the UK.

In response to comments on other Local Authorities, the Chief Executive said 
that Ynys Môn may be considered an exceptional case due to its geographical 
isolation as an island and its close community ties.  On links between existing 
communities, he said that community ties at local level would continue as the County 
Council representation was unaffected.

Following a query by Councillor Neville Phillips, the Chief Executive confirmed 
that the proposals for Parliamentary constituencies did not affect County Council 
boundaries.

Councillor Richard Jones pointed out that the UKEQ of 77,373 was an 
average figure of the range set out in the Parliamentary Constituencies Act 1986.  He 
said that the review should have been an opportunity to focus on better 
representation at local level and he spoke against the principle of creating larger 
areas of responsibility which might put smaller political parties at a campaigning 
disadvantage due to scale, and erode representation for electors/residents.  He 
shared Councillor Bithell’s concerns about consistency of the review across Wales.

The Chief Executive suggested that the comments raised be collated in a draft 
response for consideration at a special meeting with Group Leaders in October.  This 
would enable a detailed collective written response to be submitted from the Council 
within the deadline.

Councillor Ian Roberts spoke about the complexity of reviewing constituencies 
and the importance of the Council responding to the proposals.  He moved the 
recommendation including the suggestion made by the Chief Executive.

The Chief Executive responded to concerns raised by Councillor Tony Sharps 
on the representation of constituencies within the UK Parliament.

Having been moved, the recommendation was seconded by Councillor Billy 
Mullin.  When put to the vote, the recommendation was carried.

RESOLVED:

That the initial proposals for the constituencies of Delyn and Alyn and Deeside be 
noted and that a draft response comprising Members’ comments be shared with 
Group leaders to agree a formal response from the Council.

40. CLWYD PENSION FUND AND WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP

The Chief Executive presented a report for the Council to approve 
amendments to the Constitution, Financial Procedure Rules and Pension Board 
Protocol with matters relating to the Clwyd Pension Fund, and to approve 
amendments to the Inter Authority Agreement with the Wales Pension Partnership.  
The changes comprise were recommended to Council by the Clwyd Pension Fund 
Committee.

Tudalen 7



As Chair of the Clwyd Pension Fund Committee, Councillor Ted Palmer 
moved the recommendations which reflected minor but important changes.  He was 
seconded by Councillor Haydn Bateman.

In response to questions from Councillor Mike Peers, the Chief Executive 
provided clarification on the appointment of an independent expert Allocator to 
manage Private Markets.

The Chief Officer (Governance) provided background on the proposed change 
in arrangements to transfer responsibility for the write-off of pension fund bad debt 
from Cabinet to the Clwyd Pension Fund Committee.

Having been moved and seconded, the recommendations were put to the vote 
and carried.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the amendments to the Inter-Authority Agreement shown in Appendix 1 
be approved; and

(b) That the amendments to the Constitution, Financial Procedure Rules and 
Pension Board Protocol shown in Appendix 2 be approved.

41. BECOMING A COUNTY OF SANCTUARY

The Chief Officer (Housing and Assets) presented a report for the Council to 
become a non-awarded member of City of Sanctuary.  This network had developed 
to become an international movement to which Flintshire could contribute through its 
strong history of supporting refugees and build upon the launch of Flintshire City of 
Sanctuary in 2018.  The recommendation for the Council to become a non-awarded 
member of the movement represented a commitment to sign up to the vision and 
values of the movement whilst working towards the award.

In moving the recommendation, Councillor Ian Roberts said that the values 
and principles of the movement were shared by the County.  He was seconded by 
Councillor Christine Jones.

Also speaking in support, Councillors Hilary McGuill and Chris Bithell 
expressed their pride in the County’s support for refugees and those seeking 
sanctuary.

The recommendation was put to the vote and carried.

RESOLVED:

That the Council becomes a non-awarded member of the movement and in doing so, 
signs up to the vision and values of City of Sanctuary.

Tudalen 8



42. SUPPORT FOR MEMBERS WHO ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND MEETINGS DUE TO 
ILL-HEALTH

The Chief Officer (Governance) presented the report for the Council to 
approve the continued absence of two elected Members, on compassionate grounds, 
as provided for under Section 85(1) of the Local Government Act 1972.  He took the 
opportunity to highlight the support and counselling service available to Members and 
employees.

In moving the recommendations, Councillor Ian Roberts confirmed that he had 
been in contact with both Members and suggested that the Chairman write to wish 
them a speedy recovery on behalf of the Council.

In seconding the proposal, Councillor Mike Peers highlighted the importance 
of recognising the support available in such situations.  He said that the Council may 
wish to consider the impact upon Members holding special responsibilities who may 
find themselves in this position.

Members in need of support were urged to contact the Chief Executive, Chief 
Officer (Governance) or Head of Democratic Services.

Councillor Patrick Heesom wished to record his appreciation for the support 
given to both Members.

The recommendations were put to the vote and carried.

RESOLVED:

(a) That Council approves, on compassionate grounds, the continued absence of 
two Members from meetings due to their ill health; and

(b) That Council notes that the Head of Democratic Services will be re-circulating 
details of the Carefirst Employee Information and Counselling service to all 
Members.

43. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

None were received.

44. QUESTIONS

None were received.

45. NOTICE OF MOTION

None were received.

Tudalen 9



46. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press in attendance.

(The meeting started at 2pm and ended at 3.10pm)

Chairman

Tudalen 10



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 11

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 6
Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 17

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 19

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 23

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



COUNTY COUNCIL

Date of Meeting Tuesday, 19th October 2021

Report Subject Annual Performance Report 2020-21

Cabinet Member Leader of the Council

Report Author Chief Executive

Type of Report Strategic

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Annual Performance Report for 2020/21 reviews our progress against the 
Council Priorities as detailed in the Flintshire County Council Reporting Measures 
2020/21.

2020/21 has been an exceptional year for all organisations as we have had to 
cope with the threats and challenges of a global pandemic. Performance against 
the Council Plan measures was positive overall with 67% of the performance 
indicators meeting or exceeding target for the year, whilst 48% showed 
improvement or remained stable. 

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 To approve the 2020/2021 Annual Performance Report as recommended 
by Cabinet.

Tudalen 29

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 7



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE COUNCIL PLAN PERFORMANCE 2020/21

1.01 The Annual Performance Report (the Report) meets the statutory 
requirement to publish a Corporate Plan as required by the Local Government 
(Wales) Measure (2009) (the Measure). The report must be published by 31st 
October each year. The purpose of the report is to account for the 
organisation’s previous year’s performance against its Council Priorities. 

1.02 The requirements of the Measure are met through the “forward looking” 
document; the Council Plan 2020/21. This sets out the vision and priorities 
for the Council. The second statutory requirement of the Measure is met by 
this Annual Performance Report, which reviews progress on commitments 
made in the previous year.

1.03 The Annual Performance Report must be approved by the full Council prior 
to publication.

1.04 The Annual Performance Report for 2020/21 reviews our progress against 
the Priorities as detailed in the Flintshire County Council Reporting Measures 
2020/21. This assessment takes into consideration assessments of our 
performance: 

 Performance indicator outturns (target and trend analysis)

 Regulatory, audit and inspection activity

 Progress against the Well-being of Future Generations sustainable 

development principles and goals.

 Progress against the Council’s Well-being Objectives 

1.05 Performance Indicator Outturns
The Report summaries our performance against the 2020/21 reporting 
measures and also nationally using the Public Accountability Measures 
(PAMs). Welsh Government have decided not to collect the PAMs for 
2019/20 and 2020/21 and therefore benchmarking information is unavailable. 
We have continued to use the collected data to measure performance against 
trend and our own targets.

Reporting Measures
Assessment of actual performance against target:

 67.21% (41) of performance measures achieved target or better.
 19.67% (12) of performance measures missed target within an 

acceptable margin.
 13.11% (8) of performance measures significantly missed target.

Analysis of trend was also undertaken. This is a comparison of current year 
performance with that of the previous year. 

Where trend analysis could be undertaken: -
 43% (26) of performance measures showed improved performance;

Tudalen 30



 52% (31) showed performance which had downturned when 
compared with the previous year; and 

 5% (3) had maintained the same level of performance.

Public Accountability Measures
Assessment of performance against our own set targets: 

 53% (8) of national measures achieved target or better.
 7% (1) of national measures missed target within an acceptable 

margin.
 40% (6) of national measures significantly missed target.

Analysis of trend was also undertaken. This is a comparison of current year 
performance with that of the previous year. Where trend analysis could be 
undertaken: -

 40% (6) of national measures showed improved performance.
 13% (2) were maintained; and
 47% (7) showed performance which had downturned when compared 

with the previous year

1.06 Regulation, Audit and Inspection Activity
The Audit Wales publishes an Annual Audit Summary Report each year on 
behalf of the Auditor General for Wales. This report is currently being 
produced for Flintshire which will summarise its findings and give 
recommendations from the various reports that have been produced.

1.07 The Auditor General has not made any statutory recommendations with 
which the Council must comply thus far.

1.08 The Report will be made available via the Council’s website once published. 
Paper copies will also be available with supporting documents which provide 
the more detailed information will be available as ‘hyperlinked’ documents.
 

1.09 Both Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
have continued to consider performance areas which under-performed 
(downward trend and/or low quartile benchmark position) throughout 
2020/21.  

1.10 Progress against these action plans with mid-year performance will be 
monitored and reported in December as part of the mid-year performance 
reports.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 There are no specific resource implications as part of this report.  

3.00 IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

3.01
Ways of Working (Sustainable Development) Principles Impact

Long-term The Annual Performance Report covers all 
Tudalen 31



Prevention

Integration 

Collaboration

Involvement

Five Ways of Working. Throughout the 
report you will be able to see the impact 
and the way we apply Five Ways of 
Working across the Council Priorities. We 
have included one case study which 
demonstrates impact through each of the 
areas

Well-being Goals Impact

Prosperous Wales
Resilient Wales
Healthier Wales
More equal Wales
Cohesive Wales
Vibrant Wales
Globally responsible Wales

Throughout the Annual Performance 
Report we refer to the Well-Being Goals 
and their impact. 

Council’s Well-being Objectives 
The Council’s wellbeing objectives have been measured against and 
evidence has been provided for each of the sub priorities. The evidence 
demonstrates the progress which have been made against the Well-being 
Objectives.

4.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED/CARRIED OUT

4.01 Member workshops have been unable to take place. The consultation with 
Senior Managers, Chief Officers and Members has been supported online. 
Consultation is undertaken throughout the year by Cabinet and Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees regularly reviewing performance reports. 

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix A - Draft Annual Performance Report 2020/21

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Flintshire County Council Reporting Measures 2020/21
Council’s Well-being Objectives

7.00 CONTACT OFFICER DETAILS

7.01 Contact Officer: Jay Davies, Strategic Performance Advisor
Telephone: 01352 702744
E-mail: jay.davies@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 32

mailto:karen.armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk


8.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

8.01 Council Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of the 
Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 
to set objectives and publish a Plan.

Public Accountability Measures: nationally agreed measures to be 
collected and monitored by all councils for benchmarking purposes.

Tudalen 33



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Page 1 of 35
Tudalen 35



Page 2 of 35
Tudalen 36



Page 3 of 35

Table of Contents
Introduction..............................................................................................................................................................3

The COVID -19 Pandemic..........................................................................................................................................3

Priority Setting..........................................................................................................................................................4

Alignment of Council Plan Priorities and Well-Being Objectives ............................................................................5

Your Local Services ...................................................................................................................................................7

Assessment of our Wellbeing Objectives ............................................................................................................8

Highlights of performance and what has been achieved ......................................................................................10

Portfolio: Education and Youth .........................................................................................................................10

Portfolio: Housing and Assets............................................................................................................................11

Portfolio: Governance........................................................................................................................................12

Portfolio: Planning, Environment and Economy ...............................................................................................13

Portfolio: Chief Executives .................................................................................................................................16

Council Plan Progress – Infographic of RAGs .........................................................................................................17

Assessment of our Performance........................................................................................................................17

Performance Data Summary ..................................................................................................................................17

National Performance Summary (All Wales Position) ......................................................................................17

Council Plan Performance Summary .................................................................................................................20

Council Plan Performance Data Summary .............................................................................................................22

Risk Management and Business Planning .............................................................................................................23

Future Generations – Five Ways of Working – Case Study: Marleyfield Residential Home ................................24

Future Generations – Five Ways of Working – Case Study:  Buckley Repair and Reuse Centre with Café..........26

Long Term:..........................................................................................................................................................27

Prevention: .........................................................................................................................................................27

Integration:.........................................................................................................................................................27

Collaboration:.....................................................................................................................................................27

Involvement: ......................................................................................................................................................27

Social Value - Case Studies .....................................................................................................................................28

Equality ...................................................................................................................................................................31

Welsh Language Standards (WLS)..........................................................................................................................31

Partnership and Collaboration Activity .................................................................................................................31

Regulation, Audit and Inspection...........................................................................................................................33

Corporate Health and Safety..................................................................................................................................33

Appendices .............................................................................................................................................................33

Feedback and How to Obtain Further Information ...............................................................................................34

Tudalen 37



Page 4 of 35

Introduction
Welcome to Flintshire’s Annual Performance Report (APR). This document gives an overview of 
the performance of the Council during 2020/21 against the priorities we set. It also covers 
progress against our Well-being Objectives. 
The report covers: 

 Actual and comparative performance information against local and nationally set 
performance indicators;

 Our performance against the Future Generations Ways of Working and our Own Well-
being objectives.

The COVID -19 Pandemic
2020/21 has been an exceptional year for all organisations as we have had to cope with the 
threats and challenges of a global pandemic.

The Council was able to maintain all critical services throughout the pandemic and the enforced 
‘lockdowns’ through effective contingency planning, innovation, and the commitment of its 
management and workforce.

The Council has played a major part in the local, regional and national response to the pandemic 
and, more latterly, recovery and forward planning. We expanded our role to protect the 
vulnerable for example in providing support services to those who had to shield at home, 
contributed to the rainbow hospital and vaccination programmes, and took the lead for the six 
local authorities in the region in developing a comprehensive Test, Trace, Protect programme. 
We also adjusted our services to enable the continuity of services on digital platforms.

The intended Council Plan for 2020/21 was not published in its normal format on time due to the 
interruption of the pandemic. Performance objectives and targets for the year were reviewed 
and published at the mid-point. All portfolios produced business recovery plans supported by 
recovery risk registers which have been actively maintained and managed.

The performance of services was inevitably affected by the disruption of the pandemic and the 
temporary restrictions on service provision which were set at a national level. All critical services 
have been maintained throughout and performance against the revised performance standards 
and targets has been strong.

Our own assessment of our response to the pandemic can be seen within reports and 
publications on our website. Our continued recovery is guided by the Recovery Committee. Our 
response and now recovery is overseen by the Chief Executive and Chief Officer Team. 

We continue to play a leading role in regional recovery planning.

Audit Wales commented that “from the work that Audit Wales has undertaken to date, I am 
assured that Flintshire County Council’s (the council) recovery from the impact of the pandemic 

Tudalen 38



Page 5 of 35

has benefitted from strong and consistent leadership, particularly in planning and decision 
making. There has been a drive to engage and lead regional groups which is positive. Internal and 
external communication has been very strong and it is to the Council’s credit.

I consider that the Council’s approach to reporting is well structured and well thought through. 
The Council has taken the right response to corporate planning. As a result, it has enabled the 
Council to focus on clear, concise reporting and achieving key projects and ensuring that essential 
service demands are met.”

Priority Setting
Flexibility in planning has been necessary during 2020/21. Corporate and portfolio strategic and 
operational risks are monitored as part of the ongoing recovery process and not directly linked 
to the Council Plan for 2020/21. 

Tudalen 39



Page 6 of 35

Alignment of Council Plan Priorities and Well-Being Objectives

For 2020/21, the Well-being Objectives have been allocated to the respective portfolios as 
detailed below:

Portfolio Well-Being Objectives

Education and Youth

 Supporting children and younger people to achieve their potential
 Supporting learners from 3 to 18 years of age to aspire to high levels 

of educational attainment and achievement
 Providing high quality learning opportunities and learning 

environments for learners of all ages

Housing and Assets

 Ensuring a supply of affordable and quality housing of all tenures
 Protecting people from poverty by maximising their income and 

maximising their employability

Governance  Widening digital access to public services

Planning, 
Environment and 

Economy

 Sustaining economic growth through local and regional business 
development, employment and skills strategies

 Making communities safe places by working with partners to 
prevent crime, repeat crime and anti-social behaviour

 Protecting people from the risk of any form of abuse
 Ensuring the supply of affordable and quality housing of all tenures
 Creating a supply of diverse and quality training and employment 

opportunities
 Continuing to be a high performing and innovative public sector 

organisation with social values
 Protecting people from poverty by maximising their income and 

maximising their employability
 Committing to resilient service models to sustain local public 

services
 Supporting local communities to be resilient and self-supporting
 Creating a supply of diverse and quality training and employment 

opportunities 
 Sustaining economic growth through local and regional business 

development, employment and training sites 

Social Services

 Making early interventions to support healthy and independent 
living

 Sustaining a local market of high quality and affordable service 
provision for those who are highly dependent on care support

 Protecting people from the risk of any form of abuse

Tudalen 40



Page 7 of 35

Portfolio Well-Being Objectives

Streetscene and 
Transportation

 Developing the transport infrastructure and employment sites, and 
transport services, widening access to employment and training 
sites

 Maximising the recovery and recycling of waste

Chief Executives

 Providing high quality, accessible, responsive and cost effective 
public services

 Providing joined-up services with public and third sector partners 
which support quality of life in communities and for individuals and 
families

 Committing to resilient service models to sustain local public 
services

 Supporting local communities to be resilient and self-supporting

Note: The colour scheme used in this table is used throughout the document for ease of recognition.

Tudalen 41



Page 8 of 35

Your Local Services
Services for you –a compilation of the range of services we offer the communities of Flintshire 
and some figures against how well we have performed last year 2020/21

 1,865 children participated in the summer play-scheme including 30 disabled children 
supported by volunteer buddies 

 65% of young people aged 16 – 18 years in the youth justice system offered education, 
training or employment were accessing more than 16 hours per week

 100% compliance achieved relating to gas safety
 500+ residents were supported per week during the 18 week shielding providing over 

46,000 meals
 The number of affordable homes owned and managed by NEW Homes exceeded target 

by 17 homes
 2,173 energy efficiency measures delivered to reduce fuel poverty which exceeded the 

target of 600
 1,500 home workers supported per day compared to 800 per day the previous year
 £50.9m was paid out to businesses during the pandemic in addition to the 1,265 

businesses being awarded £16.3m of enhanced retail, leisure and hospitality rate relief 
 The Contact Centre has seen an overall improvement in performance over the last year.  

Call answering rates have increased to 93.64% and the abandonment rate has decreased 
to 6.36%, an improvement on the previous year of 13%

 17,405 new subscriptions to ‘My Account’ which exceed target
 Over 79,000 digital self-service enquiries were received.  This is a significant increase 

compared to the previous year and exceeds the target set for the year by 32%
 7 new foster carers were recruited
 4 children were prevented from entering the care system through the award of Special 

Guardianship Orders to family members
 133 children received the active offer of advocacy
 1,257 families received information and support through the Early Help Hub
 378 adults commissioned their own services through a direct payment
 100% of urgent requests for equipment met or exceeded the national 1 day response 

standards
 100% of requests for equipment met or exceeded the national 7 day standard
 96.75% of adult safeguarding enquiries were met within the 7 day timescales 
 12 Micro-carers delivering services in the county 
 55 Extra care units (43 one bedroom apartments and 12 two bedroom apartments) 

opened in Holywell (Plas Yr Ywen)
 1,136 people over the age of 65 were being supported to live at home and a further 501 

older people were being supported in care homes

Tudalen 42



Page 9 of 35

Assessment of our Wellbeing Objectives
The Council set its Well-being Objectives in June 2017 to meet the requirements of the Well-
being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

Designated public bodies are required to work individually and collectively to improve well-being 
in Wales. The seven well-being goals and the five ways of working set a general purpose for public 
bodies.  They also aim to ensure better decisions by:

 considering the long-
term

 prevention

 integrated working

 working collaboratively

 being inclusive of people 
of all ages.

Further details on the Future Generations Act (FGA) and the seven wellbeing goals can be found 
by using this link.

The section ‘Future Generations – Five Ways of Working Case Studies’ provides examples of how 
we have met the Future Generations ways of working in some specific area of work. 

Our Well-being Objectives reflect the ‘Impacts’ we intend to make through the actions and 
activities within each priority.  An assessment of the progress against each Objective is made as 
part of the overall performance for each priority.

 

Tudalen 43

https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/#:~:text=The%20Future%20Generations%20Act%20defines%20Sustainable%20Development%20in,development%20principle%2C%20aimed%20at%20achieving%20the%20well-being%20goals.%E2%80%9D.


Page 10 of 35

Evidence of Well-Being Outcomes against Council Plan Priorities 

Portfolio Progress Well-Being Objectives Outcome/Evidence

Education and 
Youth

G

 65% of young people aged 16 – 18 years in the youth justice system 
offered education, training or employment were accessing more than 16 
hours per week

Housing and 
Assets

G

 Over 500 residents per week were supported during the 18 week shielding 
period (14th April 2020 to 16th August 2020), providing over 46,000 meals

 27 volunteers from the Housing and Revenue department as well as Clwyd 
Alyn, Mountain Rescue and local volunteers delivered food parcels direct 
to the residents homes on a weekly basis for those who were shielding 
during the pandemic

 The number of affordable homes owned and managed by NEW Homes 
exceeded target by 17 homes

Governance G

 The number of new subscriptions to ‘My Account’ continues to increase 
(17,405 subscriptions) and exceeded the target of 13,131 for the year

 Over 79,000 digital self-service enquiries were received which is a 
significant increase compared to the previous year and exceeds the target 
set

Planning, 
Environment 
and Economy

G

 62% of major planning applications were determined in time
 Only 7.31% of planning decisions were made contrary to officer 

recommendations 

Social Services G

 96.75% of adult safeguarding enquiries were met within the 7day 
timescales which exceeded target set for the year

 12 Micro-carers delivering services in the county as a result of the 
implementation of Micro-care

 55 Extra care units consisting of 43 one bedroom apartments and 12 two 
bedroom apartments opened in Holywell (Plas Yr Ywen) which exceeded 
the target of 50 units

 1,136 people over the age of 65 were being supported to live at home and 
a further 501 older people were being supported in care homes

Streetscene 
and 

Transportation

G
 The Welsh Government statutory target for the percentage of waste 

reused, recycled or composted was achieved
 Over 700 tonnes of ‘waste’ items have been sent for reuse from 

Flintshire’s Household Recycling Centres and residential properties

Chief 
Executives

G
 Percentage of planned efficiencies achieved exceeded target
 Percentage variance between the revenue budget outturn and the budget 

set exceeded target

Tudalen 44



Page 11 of 35

Highlights of performance and what has been achieved
Portfolio: Education and Youth

Strong Performance
 During August 2020, 1,865 children participated in the summer playscheme. This included 30 

disabled children supported by volunteer buddies
 The number of First time entrants into the criminal justice system has fallen during the year
 65% of young people aged 16 – 18 years in the youth justice system offered education, training 

or employment were accessing more than 16 hours per week

Strong Stories
 Schools in Flintshire have continued to access professional development and plan for the new 

curriculum and imminent changes to legislative requirements for children with Additional 
Learning Needs

 During the suspension of statutory education, schools settings were successfully repurposed 
into Hubs for vulnerable children and children of key workers during March to July 2020

 Schools were well prepared for the safe reopening of statutory education from September 
2020 and effectively managed subsequent national lockdown periods

 Secondary schools successfully delivered the revised arrangements for the provision of GCSE 
and A level grades for 2021

 The delivery of remote working and adaptation to home schooling via digital platforms has 
been successful

 A summer play scheme for children aged 5-12 years at 55 sites was delivered including two 
Welsh Medium play schemes. For further information please see:  
https://www.leaderlive.co.uk/news/18757183.flintshire-play-schemes-adapt-another-
successful-summer/ (Flintshire play schemes adapt for another successful summer article, The 
Leader, 29 September 2020) and http://www.deeside.com/flintshire-county-councils-
summer-playscheme-deemed-a-success-even-with-added-setback-of-covid-19/ (Flintshire 
County Council’s ‘Summer Play-scheme’ deemed a success, even with added setback of 
COVID-19 article, Deeside.Com, 30 September 2020)

 Estyn (Her Majesty’s Inspectorate for Education & Training) reviewed the portfolio’s 
performance twice as part of a national thematic review of the provision for learning and 
vulnerable children during the pandemic and given very positive feedback on both occasions

 Youth Services have developed a comprehensive digital service to ensure young people 
continue to access support despite the closure of youth clubs in line with national regulations

Improvement Areas
 Improving the levels of attendance and reducing exclusions. It has been challenging to measure 

any impact of changes implemented given the emergency restrictions and changes to Welsh 
Government legislation and recording over the past year

Tudalen 45

https://www.leaderlive.co.uk/news/18757183.flintshire-play-schemes-adapt-another-successful-summer/
https://www.leaderlive.co.uk/news/18757183.flintshire-play-schemes-adapt-another-successful-summer/
http://www.deeside.com/flintshire-county-councils-summer-playscheme-deemed-a-success-even-with-added-setback-of-covid-19/
http://www.deeside.com/flintshire-county-councils-summer-playscheme-deemed-a-success-even-with-added-setback-of-covid-19/


Page 12 of 35

Portfolio: Housing and Assets
Strong Performance

 The Responsive Repairs Service continued to provide an urgent and emergency repairs service during 
the pandemic and achieved 100% compliance relating to gas safety

 Over 500 residents per week were supported during the 18 week shielding period (14th April 2020 to 
16th August 2020), providing over 46,000 meals

 The number of affordable homes owned and managed by NEW Homes exceeded target by 17 homes
 Tenant satisfaction results for Welsh Housing Quality Standards (WHQS) refurbishment programmes 

were positive with an overall average rating of 96% 
 2,173 energy efficiency measures were delivered to reduce fuel poverty which exceeded the target of 

600
 Regularly reporting zero rough sleepers demonstrates the services ongoing commitment and enhanced 

response to rough sleeping 
Strong Stories

 Trade apprentices have been successful in gaining full time employment within the Housing Repairs 
Service in the trade that they qualified in

 A number of projects have been delivered in partnership around Poverty during the pandemic and have 
been successful:

o Emergency Food Support – Shielding Programme covering the period of 14th April to 16th 
August 2020 (Well-Fed Flintshire County Council’s Enterprise in partnership with Clwyd Alyn 
and Can Cook)

o Meals on Wheels Service – Service created and is now well established, delivering fresh food 
parcels direct to residents doors on a weekly basis since September 2020

o Christmas Food Boxes – Partnership approach to deliver Christmas dinner to families and 
individuals in need.  150 gifts and 120 shoe boxes were donated.  Housing staff delivered the 
Christmas dinner boxes as well as selection boxes and the gifts for the children to 126 Flintshire 
households on Christmas Eve.  In addition, 96 Meals as well as gifts were delivered to 32 care 
leavers in Flintshire

o Well-Fed Food Store – Emergency Food Support
o Well-Fed - Mobile Shop
o Holiday Hunger Programme 2021 - Working in collaboration with Flintshire Social Services, 

families that would benefit from receiving a fresh meal over the summer holidays received one 
direct to their door each week via Well-Fed

 27 volunteers from the Housing and Revenue department as well as Clwyd Alyn, Mountain Rescue and 
local volunteers delivered food parcels direct to the residents homes on a weekly basis for those who 
were shielding during the pandemic

 The average number of days target to process new claims for housing benefit and council tax reductions 
were met despite increased work volumes as a result of the pandemic

 Bunkabins were sourced to provide self-contained space for homeless people in need of emergency 
bed provision.  These have been and continue to be well received 

Improvement Areas
 Average number of calendar days taken to deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant (Large Adaptations) did 

not meet expected targets
 The number of Council homes completed or under construction through the Strategic Housing and 

Regeneration Programme (SHARP) was below target
 The percentage of Council houses that meet the Welsh Housing Quality Standards within the annual 

programme were not progressed as much as expected in comparison to previous years.

Tudalen 46



Page 13 of 35

Portfolio: Governance
Strong Performance

 Able to increase number of home workers from 800 per day to over 1,500 in order to enable them to 
continue working safely during the pandemic

 Additional resources were deployed from across the organisation to handle an 85% increase in calls to 
the Revenues Contact Centre from local businesses struggling to survive the impacts of the pandemic

 In total, £50.9m was paid out to businesses during the pandemic in addition to the 1,265 businesses 
being awarded £16.3m of enhanced retail, leisure and hospitality rate relief

 The Contact Centre has seen an overall improvement in performance over the last year.  Call answering 
rates have increased to 93.64% and the abandonment rate has decreased to 6.36%

 17,405 new subscriptions to ‘My Account’ which exceeded the target of 13,131 for the year with over 
79,000 digital self-service enquiries received, a significant increase compared to the previous year and 
exceeds the target set for the year by 32%

Strong Stories
 The Contact Centre was available remotely via the pandemic ensuring that the disruption to frontline 

services were minimised
 Provision of technology and business solutions to support the Council’s Services to respond to the Covid-

19 pandemic, these included:
o Supporting the increase of home workers from 800 per day to over 1500
o Provision of devices and mifi broadband devices to support digitally disadvantaged learners and 

service users at Hwb Cyfle
o Support for Test, Trace and Protect 
o Infrastructure provision to support the opening of the Rainbow Hospital Deeside and Ty 

Treffynnon Care Home
o Digital support for vulnerable and shielding residents 
o Rapid development of digital applications for various COVID related grants and additional 

support for individuals and businesses to help alleviate hardship
 Delivery of the Hwb infrastructure project to support delivery of a digital curriculum
 Development of high quality data standards for our corporate address data allowing the integration 

of data from various systems to support improved service and information for customers e.g. supporting 
people with dementia and improved information to support the provision of home care.  This has 
resulted in recognition at the Geoplace Annual Exemplar Awards in 2021, the only Welsh council to be 
recognised

 Registration Services have been modernised removing the need for manual registers for marriage and 
civil partnerships in line with new legislation introduced on 4th May.  The first major changes since records 
began in 1837

 Businesses have been supported through the pandemic by the provision of Business Support Grants and 
Retail Relief.  In the first 3 days of the first grant scheme going live, 1,113 grants totaling £14m were paid.  
A total of 2,620 grants were paid totaling £31.4m during phase one of the scheme.  Businesses across all 
sectors recognised the work undertaken by the Council during this critical time and there have been 
many positive comments and words thanks for the work undertaken by the Council

 In total £50.9m was paid out to business during the pandemic in addition to the 1,265 businesses being 
awarded £16.3m of enhanced retail, leisure and hospitality rate relief

Improvement Areas
 Council Tax ‘in-year’ collection levels have decreased in comparison to the previous year
 Non Domestic Rate (NDR) ‘in-year’ collection levels did not meet expected targets

Tudalen 47



Page 14 of 35

Portfolio: Planning, Environment and Economy
Strong Performance

 2,173 energy efficiency measures delivered to reduce fuel poverty against a target of 600
 62% of ‘major’ applications determined within time periods required against a target of 60% for the year
 54.17% of enforcement cases were investigated with 84 days
 Decisions made contrary to officer recommendation was 7.31% compared to a target of 20%

Strong Stories
 Pro-active work undertaken by the Enforcement Team during lockdown resulted in a reduction in the 

average time taken to pursue positive enforcement action once a breach had been identified 
 Flintshire Trading Standards undertook a successful prosecution of a roofer who conned a widow out of 

over £40,000.  They were sentenced to 18 months custody to be served consecutively with 9 months in 
prison immediately and 9 months on licence after that.  They also received a ban from being a company 
director for 5 years

 Flintshire County Council’s Environmental Health Officers have successfully prosecuted the joint 
landlords of a Flintshire property for several offences under housing legislation designed to protect 
tenants living in rented accommodation

 Highlights of the Social Value Programme for the year include:
o The Young Carers Service contract renewal was shared as an exemplar of best practice delivered by 

the Council in embedding social value into the procurement of social care contracts at the National 
Social Value Awards 2021

o The development of a Flintshire Themes, Outcomes and Measures (TOM’s) Framework 
o The procurement of Impact Reporting Ltd, a system that the Flintshire TOM’s Framework is currently 

embedded within
o Substantial progress has been made in the application of its Social Value Procurement Policy and 

social value has been applied to a significant number of contracts in all service areas
o The development of a social value 
o The production of a social value film which will be used as a key resource to promote the social value 

programme and promote best practice
o Welsh Government highly commended the progress and social value model that Flintshire have 

adopted
 Construction of two solar farms on brownfield sites in Flint and Connah’s Quay
 Delivery of Ash Die Back survey work of our road network and initial phase of diseased trees removed

Improvement Areas
 Average time taken to determine planning applications did not meet the set target for the year

Tudalen 48



Page 15 of 35

Portfolio: Social Services

Strong Performance
 7 new foster carers were recruited
 4 children were prevented from entering the care system through the award of Special Guardianship 

Orders to family members
 133 children received the active offer of advocacy
 1,257 families received information and support through the Early Help Hub
 378 adults commissioned their own services through a direct payment
 100% of urgent requests for equipment met or exceeded the national one day response standards, this 

exceeded the target for the year
 100% of requests for equipment met or exceeded the national seven day standard, this also exceeded 

the target for the year
 96.75% of adult safeguarding enquiries were met within the 7day timescales which exceeded target set 

for the year
 55 Extra care units consisting of 43 one bedroom apartments and 12 two bedroom apartments opened 

in Holywell (Plas Yr Ywen)
 1,136 people over the age of 65 were being supported to live at home and a further 501 older people 

were being supported in care homes

Strong Stories
 The implementation of Micro-care resulting in 12 Micro-carers delivering services in the County
 Taking a stand to end all male violence against women by becoming White Ribbon Accredited
 Recognition of our Learning Disability Services in the Social Care Wales Accolades and shortlisted for the 

APSE Awards.
 The employment of two graduates, young people with Learning Disabilities from the Project SEARCH 

programme, in our own services, with others entering in paid employment
 The implementation of Foster Carer support Model – ‘Mockingbird’
 The progress made with the extensions at Marleyfield House
 Completion and opening of Plas Yr Ywen Extra Care

Improvement Areas
 Ensure the evidence/analysis which informs decision making in the Early Help Hub is consistently 

recorded to for clients to  be assured of getting the right support and assistance at the right time
 Ensure that assessments and core group meetings for children named on the child protection register 

are consistently conducted in line with statutory requirements

Tudalen 49



Page 16 of 35

Portfolio: Streetscene and Transportation

Strong Performance
 Over 3,500 packed lunches were delivered to pupils in their own home during the initial lockdown period
 Implementation of social distancing measures at over 80 schools across the County, as well as in all town 

Centres, to ensure a safe and compliant environment for those returning to public spaces 
 Over 700 tonnes of ‘waste’ items have been sent for reuse from Flintshire’s Household Recycling Centres 

and residential properties
 National data continues to show that the roads within Flintshire have one of the lowest proportion in 

poor condition – Condition of both B and C roads exceeded their targets 
 Successful in obtaining over £6.8m of funding for the delivery of key transport infrastructure projects
 £1.3m of Transforming Towns funding was secured for improvements to both Mold and Buckley Town 

Centre’s to assist with recovery from the pandemic through provision of sustainable access to 
employment and retail establishments

Strong Stories
 Only North Wales Authority selected for the implementation of a 20mph pilot scheme, scheduled for 

implementation in the Buckley and Mynydd Isa area
 Operational Trainee has been named Flintshire Trainee of The Year
 Bereavement Services named APSE Award Winners
 Successful in obtaining successive year Welsh Government Resilient Roads Funding to improve highway 

resilience on the A548 due to ongoing issues of carriageway flooding. 
 Operational services such as waste and recycling collections, emergency response to adverse weather 

events (gritting, flooding), burials/bereavement services, transport services, delivery of transport 
schemes (resurfacing schemes, integrated transport, active travel) were maintained throughout the 
pandemic

 Green Recovery Circular Economy Funding successfully awarded to open a community repair and reuse 
centre, with Café, in the town of Buckley to promote waste and recycling behavioural change initiatives, 
community cohesion and town centre regeneration

 Successfully awarded Welsh Government funding to introduce electric recycling vehicle, including 
associated charging infrastructure, into its vehicle fleet with the aim to promote cleaner and more 
efficient transport solutions

 Welsh Government funding was secured for the purchase of two electric bus service vehicles for use on 
the Councils Local Travel services and support the purchase of associated charging infrastructure as well 
as undertaking essential training provision 

 Successful in obtaining ORCS (On-street Residential Charge point Scheme) funding for the 
implementation of thirty four electric vehicle charging points within Council owned car parks

 Redevelopment work began on the Greenfield Composting Facility, following the award of Welsh 
Government Funding, to improve on site traffic management and to develop the site into a regional 
green waste treatment facility

 Successful launch of the North Wales Regional Waste Treatment Partnership community benefit fund. 
This has supported local community groups, in and around Connah’s Quay, with the financial pressures 
they have encountered due to the pandemic 

 The Public Space Protection order for dog control and dog fouling was renewed for a further three years 
to allow for the effective enforcement of this antisocial behaviour and environmental crime

 The Integrated Transport Unit facilitated the:
o delivery of over 3,500 packed lunches to pupils in their own home during initial lockdown period 
o transport of Key Worker Children to designated education hubs across the County

Tudalen 50



Page 17 of 35

 Implemented physical distancing measures at over 80 schools across the County, as well as in all town 
Centres, to ensure a safe and compliant environment for those returning to public spaces 

Improvement Areas
 Downturn in the Councils recycling performance due to an increase in the amount of black sack residual 

waste being collected from residential properties 
 The amount of reported littering, dog fouling and fly tipping events has increased over the last twelve 

month
 The Council need to explore opportunities to reduce carbon emissions which include, but are not limited 

to, the development of sustainable transport opportunities and home or hub working

Portfolio: Chief Executives
Strong Performance

 131 managers and employees completed Stress Management training.  This exceeded the target set for 
the year

 The target for percentage of planned efficiencies achieved was exceeded for the year
 The number of working days lost per full time equivalent (FTE) local authority employees lost due to 

sickness absence has improved since the previous year
 76,383 payments processed during 2020/21 Payroll with 99.60% accuracy

Strong Stories
 Flintshire County Council took on the role of lead employer for the Test, Trace, Protect programme on 

behalf of the six North Wales Local Authorities including recruitment, payroll and advice/guidance to 
North Wales Local Authorities.  Over 3,300 applications were processed, Over 450 new starters and over 
100 leavers

 Test, Trace, Protect Service contact traced 8,904 Flintshire residents who Covid positive and asked 19,660 
contacts of positive cases to self-isolate.

 Human Resources and Organisational Development continued to support the organisation through the 
pandemic with limited impact on the services provided

 Occupational Health provided specialist support to a number of front line services during the early part 
of the pandemic who needed additional support to cope with their demands

 Occupational Health supported the vaccination at Deeside Rainbow Hospital, four clinical staff attended 
one day per week

 Mental Health Awareness courses have been made available across the authority which has had excellent 
take up by employees

 Increased attendance on the ‘Coaching Skills for Managers’ course over the year
 Increase in the attendance of managers  and employees at a range of awareness training sessions 

including stress awareness and mindfulness

Improvement Areas
 The percentage of budgeted income target achieved due to overall performance reducing and not 

meeting targets
 The number of apprentices that complete the programme with a positive outcome decreased in overall 

performance and missed target

Tudalen 51



Page 18 of 35

Council Plan Progress – Infographic of RAGs

Assessment of our Performance
The table below provides an overview of progress against Council Plan Key Performance 
Indicators. For more detailed information please refer to the End of Year Monitoring Report.

The key below defines the Red / Amber / Green (RAG) for measures contained in the End of Year 
Monitoring Report. 

Performance Status Key Trend Status Key

Limited Progress - delay in 
scheduled activity; not on track

Downturned – In comparison to the 
previous year’s data, the performance 
outturn has reduced

Satisfactory Progress - some delay 
in scheduled activity, but broadly on 
track

Maintained – In comparison to the 
previous year’s data, performance is the 
same as last year

Good Progress - activities 
completed on schedule, on track

Improved - In comparison to the previous 
year’s data, performance has increased

Performance Data Summary
National Performance Summary (All Wales Position)
The Welsh Government and the Local Government Data Unit have not requested submission of 
the Public Accountability Measures at the date of publication of this document. The analysis 
below is based on the Council’s performance against its own set targets and trend on previous 
year 2019/20.

Tudalen 52



Page 19 of 35

How we performed against Public Accountability Measures 2020/21
The performance output has decreased during 2020/21. This is down to factors such as limited 
data for education with schools being closed and reduced opportunities for members of the 
public to access leisure facilities. 

On Track
 53%

Monitor
 7%

Off Track
 40%

On Track

Monitor

Off Track

Public Accountability Measure RAG Status

Comparison of Performance RAG Status against 2019/20

6%

27%

67%

40%

7%

53%

Off Track Monitor On Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

2019/20

2020/21

Comparison of PAM Performance RAG Status against 
2019/20

Tudalen 53



Page 20 of 35

Performance trend for Public Accountability Measures 2020/21

Through 2020/21 we have seen an overall downturn in performance trend. The downturn trend 
has increased from 27% in 2019/20 to 47% in 2020/21. The number of measures with an 
improved trend decreased from 73% in 2019/20 to 40% in 2020/21. 

Improved
 40%

Maintained
 13%

Downturned
 47% Improved

Maintained

Downturned

Public Accountability Measure Trend

Comparison of Performance RAG Trend against 2019/20

73%

0%

27%

40%

13%

47%

Improved Maintained Downturned
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

2019/20

2020/21

Comparison of PAM Performance RAG Trend against 
2019/20

Tudalen 54



Page 21 of 35

Council Plan Performance Summary
Performance for 2020/21 against our Council Plan Measures is summarised in the performance 
indicator chart below.  67% of indicators achieved target or better compared to 78% in 2019/20. 
13% of indicators missed target compared to 8% during 2019/20.  20% of indicators are being 
monitored compared to 14% in 2019/20.

Chart 2a: Performance RAG status for Council Plan Measures 2020/21

On Track
 67%

Monitor
 20%

Off Track
 13%

On Track
Monitor
Off Track

Performance RAG Status

Comparison of Performance RAG Status against 2019/20

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

On Track Monitor Off Track

78%

14%
8%

67%

20%
13%

Comparrison of Performance RAG 
against 2019/20

2019/20

2020/21

Tudalen 55



Page 22 of 35

The performance trend for 2020/21 against our Council Plan Measures is summarised in the 
performance indicator chart below.  43% of indicators improved compared to 52% in 2019/20. 
52% of performance indicators downturned compared to 41% in 2019/20.  5% maintained their 
performance compared to 7% in 2019/20.

Chart 2b: Performance Trend for Council Plan Measures 2020/21

Improved
 43%

Maintained
 5%

Downturned
 52%

Improved

Maintained

Downturned

Performance Trend Status

Comparison of Performance Trend Status against 2019/20

52%

7%

41%43%

5%

52%

Downturned Maintained Improved
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

2019/20

2020/21

Comparrison of Performance Trend against 2019/20

Tudalen 56



Page 23 of 35

Council Plan Performance Data Summary
The table below demonstrates a comparison of performance data from 2017/18 through to 
2020/21. Each column shows positive or maintained progress being made in comparison to the 
previous year.
 
The table below shows that we had a downturn in overall performance this year compared to 
previous years. Performance measures for this year cannot be directly compared to previous 
years due to the restrictions placed on services during lockdown and the ongoing recovery.  It is 
also important to highlight that the downturn in performance is much less than expected.

Chart 3a: Percentage of Council Plan measures against target for 2017/18, 2018/19, 2019/20 
and 2020/21

58%

34%

8%

70%

20%

11%

78%

14%

8%

67%

20%

13%

On Track Monitor Off Track
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Council Plan Measures comparison of Performance Against 
Target for 2017/18 - 2020/21

Tudalen 57



Page 24 of 35

Risk Management and Business Planning
Strategic and Council Plan Risks have regularly been reported as part of our Council Plan 
Performance, during the mid-year and end of year performance reviews in previous years. In 
response to the pandemic, we invoked Flintshire Business Continuity Plans. These plans were 
designed to enable services to continue to function in the short-term. With response to the 
pandemic going on longer than the short-term and changing to a medium-term/longer-term, a 
new approach to business planning and recovery was developed. We developed business 
recovery plans based on an effective risk management approach which underpinned these plans. 
This approach embedded risk management into everyday activity and regular reporting of risk to 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s from June 2020. Corporate updates on recovery were shared 
at Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s as the response and recovery phase’s continued.

Tudalen 58



Page 25 of 35

Future Generations – Five Ways of Working – Case Study: Marleyfield Residential Home 

  

The new two-storey, 32-bedroom development to expand Marleyfield residential care home is the first of 
its kind in Wales.  The design and construction have been entirely shaped by its core purpose of optimising 
well-being and it facilitates a highly innovative operating model for supporting and caring for older people.

Long Term: 
The building and its surrounds are anything but standard, with every aspect carefully considered to ensure 
the best possible environment inside and out for enhancing health, comfort, dignity and well-being. 

The building design has numerous design measures to reduce not only the energy consumption and 
operating costs, but also the operational carbon requirements of the building and is fully on track to 
achieve a BREEAM Very Good and EPC A ratings and reduce operational Carbon.

The project represents a step change in the quality of its care home provision.  Equally, it acts as a unique 
and inspiring exemplar that can be readily adopted throughout Wales and beyond.

Prevention:
The internal environment is designed to support the health needs and the well-being of residents. The 
purpose of the building is to support individuals discharged from hospital as part of the recovery process 
with access to appropriate support to ensure that they are able to remain independent in their own homes 
for as long as possible.  The building will support in reducing the delayed transfer of care and demand on 
local hospital services and beds. The home and revitalised outdoor space will promote improved health 
and well-being.

Dedicated therapy rooms facilitate rehabilitation for those staying short-term post hospitalisation and for 
long-term residents if required. The scheme also supports people living with dementia, with factors such 
as room layout, colours and textures optimised to encourage independence, confidence and a sense of 
security.  

Tudalen 59



Page 26 of 35

Integration:
Marleyfield House and its operation will serve as the benchmark for future developments to support older 
people both within and outside of Flintshire.

Its innovative concept and modern and efficient facilities break the mould for traditional residential care 
homes and provide a template for integrating health and social care. With a relaxing, attractive 
environment that fosters independence and social interaction, it will stand as an exemplar for Wales for 
how high quality places to live in older age can be delivered in tandem with excellent services. 

Collaboration:
The innovative approach to partnership working has provided an exemplary approach to ensuring that 
excellent care is delivered to the population of Flintshire, in a building that we hope will be used as a 
foundation and template for future schemes.

Along with offering a long-term home, it provides a ground-breaking centralised short-term care, support 
and re-ablement service.  Delivered in partnership between Flintshire Social Services and Betsi Cadwaladr 
University Health Board, the therapy-led model (known as D2RA) is designed to help those coming out of 
hospital regain their independence and return to their own home.

Involvement:
The project has also delivered considerable social value, including spending locally and using local Small 
and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs), and labour.  In addition, 43 apprentice weeks were completed and 
six new employment opportunities were created.

Tudalen 60



Page 27 of 35

Future Generations – Five Ways of Working – Case Study:  Buckley Repair and Reuse Centre 
with Café

Flintshire County Council, working in partnership with Refurbs Flintshire and Groundworks North 
Wales were successful in their application to the ‘Green Recovery Circular Economy Fund 2020-
21’ to bring a Repair and Reuse Centre with café, into the former HSBC bank within the heart of 
Buckley town centre, that would promote community cohesion through repair and re-use 
initiatives while providing an opportunity to support the regeneration of the town centre. 

The aim of the project is to promote education and behavioural change on waste and recycling 
initiatives, providing volunteering opportunities and employment for local people, the creation 
of an attractive and interesting venue in the heart of the town centre, while supporting the 
strategic regeneration plan of the town and most importantly creating a place for the community 
to come together. 

Centred on the hospitality of a relaxed café environment, the initial services to be offered include:
 Bringing small household items to be repaired
 Demonstrations on basic repairs/upcycling techniques which can be replicated at home
 Providing Information on how to donate unwanted household items that can be 

refurbished for sale or recycled
 Workshops and volunteering activities to create saleable pieces for the café from recycled 

materials or unwanted items
 Displaying purchasable items produced from recycled materials

Tudalen 61



Page 28 of 35

Long Term:
The facility will promote long term behavioural change initiatives for waste minimisation to 
support the Welsh Governments vision of a Circular Economy.  

The facility will support the vision of town centre recovery by encouraging people back to the 
high street who will then utilise the local amenities following attendance at the centre. 

When it can be demonstrated that this model is successful, the intention will be to introduce 
similar facilities in other Town Centres.

Prevention:
The aim of the project is to promote waste minimisation and the reliance on single use products. 
Promoting repair and reuse initiatives will ensure valuable items are kept in use reducing waste 
and the impact on climate change.

Offering an interesting facility will attract people to the town centres which will prevent the 
further decline of our local amenities as increasing footfall will offer opportunities for other local 
businesses to benefit.

Integration:
The centre, cafe and associated workshops will be available for persons of any age. A clear vision 
of the project is to promote community cohesion and bring members of the community, who 
may not already be doing so, together.

The workshops will be developed and directed specifically to the group with which they are aimed 
towards.

Collaboration:
The project has been jointly developed with Refurbs Flintshire and Groundworks North Wales 
who both have a positive history of supporting people in the local community and delivering on 
waste minimisation projects.

Involvement:
The centre will look to engage further with local community groups to ensure that the workshops 
deliver on the interests and need of the community.

There will be opportunities for local people to volunteer at the centre and share their knowledge 
and skills.

Tudalen 62



Page 29 of 35

Social Value - Case Studies 
A selection of case studies highlighting the benefits that have been achieved through the delivery 
of social value programmes through contracts are listed below:

Marleyfield Care Home Extension
The contract to complete a major expansion 
to the Marleyfield House care home in 
Buckley, has unlocked over £1.3m of social 
value through the following initiatives; 

 142 weeks of trade apprentices
 13 weeks of traineeships delivered
 4 full time employment 

opportunities create for local 
residents who were previously Not in 
Employment, Education or Training 
(NEET).

 £2,124,197 was spent during the 
project on goods, works and services 
with organisations within, and 
surrounding 20 mile radius of 
Flintshire. 

 £10,840 invested to support local 
community causes, such as; building 
sheltered outhouses for residents in 
Marleyfield and other Council owned 
care homes, to provide shelter, for 
residents to meet friends and family 
safely during the pandemic. The 
supplier also invested to support 
many other local community causes, 
such as; donating shoe boxes filled 
with essentials for local families in 
poverty and donating to Flintshire 
Foodbank. 

 264 hours of staff volunteering time 
was delivered to support local 
community projects, 

 businesses and engaging with local 
schools. 

 60 hours supporting local people into 
work through employability 
initiatives (over 24 years old.) 

Minimising environmental damage, where 
97% of waste diverted from landfill 
approximately 2.39 tons of waste, and other 
water and carbon reduction savings 
achieved.

Tudalen 63



Page 30 of 35

Young Carers Service
In 2020 the Young Carers Service was 
reprocured 
and where a comprehensive 4-5 month period 
of consultations were delivered with the service 
users, their families, the local Youth Council, the 
current service provider and other care 
professionals. The consultations were delivered 
to ensure the new service met with the needs of 
the service users, 
giving them a voice in, and control over reaching 
the outcomes that help them achieve well-
being. It also presented an opportunity where 
the service users were more involved in the 
design and 
delivery of service, putting their individual needs 
and the centre of their care.

During these consultations, it was evidenced 
that
the young service users placed significant value
on their need for additional; peer support, 
employment and training opportunities with 
respite care, the facilitation of sustainable 
natural networks outside of the service, and 
more meaningful activities that would provide 
them with additional well-being benefits such as 
improved; confidence, independence, 
happiness and sense of achievement. 

As well as building, some of these values into the 
service delivery model, we also developed a set 
of core social value themes, outcomes and 
measures centred on these additional 
aspirations, and included them as part of a 10% 
weighted social value element within the 
procurement for prospective suppliers to 
respond to. The successful bidder committed to 
over £13,099.43 of social value through the 
following initiatives;

 2 x 26 week paid work opportunity for 2 
young carers.

 12 paid work placement days for 12 young 
cares within one of their Charity shops.

 12 days of paid respite care to enable 12 
young carers access to the suppliers one day 
paid work experience opportunity within 
one of their Charity shops, as outlined in the 
above commitment.

 26 work placements weeks unpaid
 An intergenerational mentor/buddy scheme 

with young carers, in collaboration with 
Celtic Business network with 117 business 
members to provide employment mentoring 
and link to work opportunities with local 
employers.

 A young carers awareness day providing 
support to young carers and raising 
awareness of the challenges faced by young 
carers and campaigns for greater support for 
them.

 Additional activities outside of the service 
including; First Aid, cooking, finance and 
budgeting, entrepreneurship, Dragon’s Den 
pitch.

Tudalen 64



Page 31 of 35

Hollybush Junction/Abermorddu Signals
The project to upgrade a junction at 
Hollybush in Cefn y Bedd, consists of a new 
signalised junction, footway and cycleway 
improvements with associated civils works. 
The project also includes an upgrade the 
existing signals equipment at Abermorddu 
and resurfacing a section of the A541. The 
contract has unlocked £379,137.46 of social 
value, meaning that for every £1 invested 
there is a £0.90 social return on investment.  
This has been achieved through the 
following initiatives;

 £426,698.70 spent with local supply 
chain on the procurement of goods, 
works and specialist services 
required for the delivery of the 
contract.

 £525 spent through staff 
volunteering and donation of 
resources on initiatives to improve 
local road safety.  

 The organisations partnered with 
Abermorddu CP School during the 
construction period to deliver road 
safety lessons for pupils following 
guidance by Road Safety Wales’ 
Kerbcraft Programme.

 Support was provided by two North 
Wales-based Apprentices who are 
Construction/STEM Ambassadors 
and hold recent DBS certificate

 £1000 donated to support Holway 
Playscheme to provide essential food 
provision for the children attending 
the scheme over the 6 weeks school 
holidays.

Tudalen 65



Page 32 of 35

Equality 
The Council takes seriously its duty to promote equality, eliminate discrimination and foster good 
relations through all its activities. During the past 12 months we have continued to make progress 
with meeting our equality objectives and our statutory duties.  We continued to work with other 
public bodies to promote Hate Crime Awareness week to encourage reporting and reinforce the 
message that hate crime is wrong. We have refurbished our Traveller site to include new 
electrical supply, new showers and new fencing.  We have also installed street furniture for 
games and a five a side pitch to increase opportunities for play.  The Health Needs Assessment 
Report that we commissioned from Public Health Wales has been completed and this will inform 
our future priorities for working with Gypsies and Travellers.  

Welsh Language Standards (WLS) 
We are committed to promoting, supporting and safeguarding the Welsh language for the benefit 
of present and future generations and ensuring that we can offer high quality services through 
the medium of English and Welsh.  To increase the number and percentage of employees who 
have basic levels of Welsh skills, employees who report that they do not have any Welsh skills 
are being asked to complete a taster course.  We participated in Diwrnod Hawliau (National 
Welsh Language Rights Day Campaign), promoting our services which are available in Welsh, 
encouraging Welsh speakers to contact us in Welsh.  We continued to support Menter Iaith Sir y 
Fflint a Wrecsam (a community organisation working to increase and strengthen the use of Welsh 
locally) to celebrate Saint David’s Day across the county and were able to secure funding to 
celebrate St David’s Day virtually.  

Partnership and Collaboration Activity
Flintshire has a longstanding and proud track record of partnership working. The communities it 
serves rightly expect the statutory and third sector partners to work together to manage shared 
priorities through collaboration.  The Flintshire Public Services Board is at the heart of promoting 
a positive culture of working together and concentrates energy, effort and resources on providing 
efficient and effective services to local communities.     

The Flintshire Public Services Board is a strong and unified team and was formally established on 
1st April 2016 as a result of the “Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act” coming into 
effect.  The Board is made up of senior leaders from a number of public and voluntary 
organisations: Flintshire County Council, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, Natural 
Resources Wales, North Wales Fire and Rescue Services (as statutory members); along with North 
Wales Police, Public Health Wales, Flintshire Local Voluntary Council, Coleg Cambria, Glyndwr 
University, National Probation Services Wales, Welsh Government and a representative on behalf 
of Flintshire Town and Community Councils (as invited PSB members).   Together these 
organisations have worked positively in implementing the Well-being Plan for Flintshire and have 
worked together to deliver the in-year priorities to improve services and outcomes for local 
people.  A copy of the Well-being Plan for Flintshire can be found here.

Tudalen 66

https://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Council-and-Democracy/Flintshire-Public-Services-Board.aspx


Page 33 of 35

Over the past 12 months, the Flintshire Public Services Board has focused their efforts in two 
main priority areas, priorities that were continued from the previous year.  These being:

 Community Safety – People are Safe
 Healthy and Independent Living

The other previous priorities for the Flintshire Public Services Board (Economy, Environment and 
Community Resilience) were developed as follows:

 Economy – this priority is being led at a regional level by the Regional Economic Ambition 
Board with relevant projects and activities being delivered locally

 Environment – this priority is a blend of both joint work with Wrexham and locally 
delivered commitments

 Community Resilience – this priority is being led jointly with Wrexham Public Services 
Board as a result of a decision made by the regional Strategic Recovery Group (made up 
of key public service leaders) 

The emergency situation over the past year has changed our home, work and social lifestyles.  All 
public and third sector organisations have supported individuals and communities in ways which 
we could not have foreseen.  We continue to support recovery from the pandemic by working in 
partnership and more recently in response to the challenges, the Flintshire Public Services Board, 
has joined with the Wrexham’s Public Services Board to form a united body to action some of the 
more pressing and longer term societal challenges which affect both counties.

The joint Flintshire and Wrexham Public Services Board formed in June 2020 to tackle Community 
Resilience and identified four areas of focus with a clear collective purpose:

 Children and Young People
 Environment and Carbon Reduction
 Mental Health and Well-being
 Poverty and Inequality

These joint priorities together with the two continuing priorities for Flintshire Public Services 
Board will become the priorities for 2021/22 and will be captured within a blended Well-being 
Plan moving forward.

Working together to make an impact in these priority area is the collective aim of both the 
Flintshire Public Services Board and the Joint Public Services Board with Wrexham, realising that 
no single organisation can achieve this on their own; the partner organisations represented on 
these Boards can collectively make a positive difference for the people who live, visit and work 
in Flintshire and there are a number of positive examples as a result of this partnership approach 
such as the extension of Marleyfield Residential Home and the new Extra Care Scheme in 
Holywell (Plas Yr Ywen).  

Tudalen 67



Page 34 of 35

Regulation, Audit and Inspection 
The Council is regulated by a number of organisations throughout the year.  These include, 
amongst others the Audit Wales (AW) Estyn for Education and the Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW).

The AW publish an annual report on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales called the Annual 
Improvement Report. This report summarises the outcomes of all work that AW have undertaken 
during the year.  

Overall the Auditor General for Wales has reached a positive conclusion. “The Auditor General 
certified that the Council has met its legal duties for improvement planning and reporting and 
believes that it is likely to meet the requirements of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 
during 2020-21.”

Corporate Health and Safety 
The Council is committed to its duties and responsibilities as an employer for health and safety. 
The management of workplaces that are safe to the health of all Council employees, sub-
contractors, stakeholders and members of the public is one of our main priorities. To meet this 
priority we plan to meet the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and other 
associated legislation as far as is reasonably practicable. 

Appendices  
Appendix A – Council Plan 2020/21 Measures (Link Required) 

Tudalen 68



Page 35 of 35

Feedback and How to Obtain Further Information 
There are a number of related documents which support this Annual Performance Report. These 
can be obtained through the following sources:  

 Flintshire County Council Plan 2020/21 Measures 
 Flintshire Council Plan Annual Monitoring Report 2020/21
 Flintshire Social Services Annual Performance Report 2020/21 
 Annual Strategic Equality Plan Report 2020/21
 Welsh Language Monitoring Report 2020/21

 

Thank you for reading our Annual Performance Report for 2020/21.

Your views and suggestions about how we might improve the content and layout of the Annual 
Performance Report for future years are welcome. 

Please contact us on:  

Tel: 01352 702744 

Email: corporatebusiness@flintshire.gov.uk

Tudalen 69

mailto:corporatebusiness@flintshire.gov.uk


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



NOTICE OF MOTION FROM THE LABOUR GROUP

That this Council supports the calls for the UK Government to continue with the £20 per 
week enhancement to Universal Credit to support the vulnerable at a time of rising 
household costs and such economic uncertainty.
 
That the Leader write to our two local Members of Parliament to invite their support for 
this motion

Tudalen 71

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 8



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol


	Rhaglen
	2 Cofnodion
	6 Prif Swyddog, Gallu’r Tîm
	Enc. 1 for Chief Officer, Team Capacity
	Enc. 2 for Chief Officer, Team Capacity
	Enc. 3 for Chief Officer, Team Capacity

	7 Adroddiad Perfformiad Blynyddol 2020/21
	Enc. 1 for Annual Performance Report 2020/21

	8 Rhybudd o Gynnig

